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Howard County Government, Calvin Ball County Executive   www.howardcountymd.gov 

 
January 11, 2023 

 
 

Matthew Taylor 
Lisbon Plaza, LLC 
2560 Lord Baltimore Drive 
Baltimore, MD 21244 
 

 
                                    RE: WP-23-054, Lisbon Shopping Center 

 
Dear Mr. Taylor: 
 

This letter is to inform you that your request for alternative compliance to the Howard County Subdivision and 
Land Development Regulations for the subject project was reviewed. 
 

On December 22, 2022 and pursuant to Section 16.1216, the Director of the Department of Planning and Zoning, 
Director of the Recreation and Parks and Administrator of the Office of Community Sustainability considered and 
approved your request for a variance with respect to Section 16.1202(v) of the Subdivision and Land Development 
Regulations to reduce the net tract area for forest conservation requirements to the proposed limit of disturbance in an 
existing shopping center. Please see the attached Final Decision Action Report for more information. 
 

Indicate this alternative compliance petition file number, request, section of the regulations, action, conditions of 
approval, and date on all related plats, and site development plans, and building permits.  This alternative compliance 
approval will remain valid for one year from the date of this letter or as long as a subdivision or site development plan is 
being actively processed in accordance with the processing provisions of the Regulations. 
 

If you have any questions, please contact Jill Manion at (410) 313-2350 or email at 
jmanion@howardcountymd.gov.    
 

Sincerely, 
 
 

Anthony Cataldo, AICP, Chief 

Division of Land Development 
AC/jam 
cc: Research 
 DLD - Julia Sauer 
 Real Estate Services 
 Marian Honeczy- DNR  
 John Conoles 
 Sang Oh 
 DCC 

mailto:jmanion@howardcountymd.gov
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ALTERNATIVE COMPLIANCE  

FINAL DECISION ACTION REPORT 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND ZONING 
DEPARTMENT OF RECREATION AND PARKS 
OFFICE OF COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY 

 
RE:   WP-23-054, Lisbon Shopping Center (Route 94 Business Center) 

Request for a variance to Section 16.1201(v) of the Subdivision and Land Development 
Regulations. 

 
Applicant:  Matthew Taylor 

Lisbon Plaza, LLC 
   2560 Lord Baltimore Drive 
   Baltimore, MD 21244 
   
 
 Pursuant to Section 16.1216, the Director of the Department of Planning Zoning, Director of the Department of 
Recreation and Parks and the Administrator of the Office of Community Sustainability considered and approved the 
applicants request for a variance with respect to Section 16.1201(v) of the Forest Conservation Regulations. The purpose 
is to use the LOD as the Net Tract Area. The Directors deliberated the application in a meeting on December 22, 2022. 
 
 Each Department hereby determines that the applicant has demonstrated to its satisfaction that strict 
enforcement of the above-cited regulation would result in an unwarranted hardship. This determination is made with 
consideration of the alternative compliance application and the six (6) items the applicant was required to address, 
pursuant to Section 16.1216: 
 

1. Describe the special conditions peculiar to the property which would cause the unwarranted hardship. 
 

The 26.02-acre property was approved and developed with a shopping center prior to the enactment of the MD 
Forest Conservation Act, including the area proposed for disturbance. Limited improvements are being proposed, 
included the redevelopment of a currently impervious pad site, the conversion of an asphalt drive to a seating 
area and pathway, and two future pad sites that were previously mass graded and grass-stabilized. The impervious 
areas would be exempt from forest conservation obligations if the property was located within the priority funding 
area. Due to the limited areas of disturbance and the lack of environmental features in these areas, it would be 
an unwarranted hardship to require the entire 26.02-acre property be used to calculate forest conservation 
requirement for a small portion of the property to be redeveloped. 

 
2. Describe how enforcement of the regulations would deprive the landowner of rights commonly enjoyed by 

others in similar areas. 
 

Most of the zoning outside the planned service area is Rural Residential (RR) and Rural Conservation (RC). The 

subject property is one of the few properties in the Rural West zoned as B-1 and developed as a shopping  
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